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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Good

          3  afternoon, everybody. Welcome to the New York City

          4  Council Subcommittee on Planning, Dispositions, and

          5  Concessions, Subcommittee of the Land Use Committee.

          6  Today's date is Tuesday, June 19th.

          7                 My name is Dan Garodnick, I am the

          8  Chair of this Committee.  I am joined today by

          9  Committee Members Maria Baez and Sara Gonzalez.

         10  Glad they're both here.

         11                 We have a considerable agenda today

         12  so we're going to get right to it. Before we start,

         13  I also wanted to recognize  -- there are a few

         14  interns from my office who are joining us today;

         15  Helena Haywood out of Mandlesberg, Brian Goldberg

         16  and Jonathan Siegel.  They are all over there in the

         17  third row.  I just wanted to recognize them, and

         18  thank them for all of their hard work in my office.

         19                 With that in mind, we're going to go

         20  right to Land Use Number 377 and open the hearing on

         21  that item.  This is a property at 575 Fifth Avenue

         22  in Brooklyn, in the district of Council Member Bill

         23  DeBlasio.  It is in Brooklyn Community Board 7, the

         24  number C 070262 HAK.

         25                 I'd like to welcome our
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          2  representatives from HPD to introduce the item, and

          3  introduce themselves.  Welcome.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Thank

          5  you, Council Member Garodnick.

          6                 I am Carol Clark, and the Assistant

          7  Commissioner at HPD for Local Legislative Affairs,

          8  and I'm joined by Terry Arroyo, our Director of Land

          9  Use.

         10                 L.U. 377 consists of the proposed

         11  disposition of one city-owned lot located at 575

         12  Fifth Avenue in Brooklyn, for development under

         13  HPD's Supportive Housing Loan Program.  The proposed

         14  not- for- profit sponsor, The Fifth Avenue

         15  Committee, will construct one five- story building

         16  with a total of 48 studio apartments available to

         17  low- income and formally homeless individuals, plus

         18  one superintendent unit.

         19                 The project also includes 2,300

         20  square feet of ground floor commercial space, and

         21  3,500 square feet of passive outdoor recreation

         22  area.

         23                 Council Member DeBlasio, who I see we

         24  are joined by, has reviewed the project and has

         25  indicated his support.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

          4  very much. We're going to give Council Member

          5  DeBlasio, in a moment, a chance to speak on the

          6  item.

          7                 Let me just ask you.  You said this

          8  was for 48 studio units, is that correct?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         10  correct, the 48 studio apartments, plus one

         11  superintendent unit.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And the

         13  income eligibility, you said low- income and

         14  formally homeless?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         16  correct.  Up to 60 percent of the area median

         17  income, which is about $29,760 per year for an

         18  individual.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  It's going to

         20  be developed on a city-owned lot.

         21                 What is on that lot today?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  It's a

         23  vacant lot today.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  It's vacant,

         25  okay.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 Now Council Member DeBlasio.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Chairman

          5  Garodnick, you're efficient management of this

          6  committee is always impressive.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  You're

          8  welcome.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: I want to

         10  first of all thank you, and thank Chair Katz for

         11  your support throughout this process, and obviously

         12  on other issues that have come before this

         13  Subcommittee in terms of my community.

         14                 I want to say this has been a very

         15  interesting process and a very productive process,

         16  but also one that took a lot of work in our

         17  community regarding 575 Fifth Avenue.

         18                 From the beginning, I felt as a

         19  representative of the community that it was

         20  crucially important to respond to the many concerns

         21  that residents had, which I thought were by- and

         22  large very fair and valid concerns.

         23                 I also thought, of course, it was

         24  crucial to support the good work of the Fifth Avenue

         25  Committee in terms creating supportive housing.  I
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          2  have had long and positive experiences with the

          3  Fifth Avenue Committee over the years, and as

          4  Chairman of the General Welfare Committee, obviously

          5  care deeply about ensuring that we do provide

          6  opportunities for people in need, and more

          7  affordable housing.

          8                 I would note that this particular

          9  site really summarizes a lot of the challenges we're

         10  going to be facing in New York City going forward.

         11  We are giving up a public parking lot to create

         12  affordable housing.  There is no doubt in my mind

         13  that the affordable housing is the highest, best

         14  use, but in a city that is increasingly going to be

         15  pressed for space, I could understand why many

         16  residents were concerned to loose a parking lot to

         17  begin with.  We're going to try and mitigate that by

         18  creating more muni-meters and other improvements to

         19  help ease the parking situation for that commercial

         20  area.

         21                 But the bottom line is, I think after

         22  a lot of work from everyone involved, we have

         23  managed to stay true to the goal of the Fifth Avenue

         24  Committee and of HPD of creating this affordable

         25  supportive housing, but also improving this project
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          2  fundamentally to make it more conducive to the

          3  surrounding residential community.  A community, I

          4  might add, that has had more than it's share of over

          5  development lately, construction and one thing and

          6  another, congestion, et cetera.  I think we've made

          7  improvements in terms of the mix of population,

          8  improvements in terms of the physical set- up of the

          9  building and the staffing, and all of that has added

         10  up to a much better process.

         11                 I will just say, and I will conclude

         12  quickly that I really want to thank HPD for a very

         13  inclusive and thoughtful and sensitive process.

         14  There were a lot meetings that took a lot of work.

         15  Anyone who thinks that city agencies aren't

         16  listening should have witnessed this process and

         17  seen how much effort HPD put into it to try and get

         18  it right.

         19                 I think City Planning was also

         20  extremely helpful and sensitive, our local police

         21  precincts, et cetera.  I think everyone and

         22  certainly Community Board 7.  Everyone in government

         23  dignified themselves in this process by being

         24  inclusive and open and sensitive.

         25                 I do want to note going forward, a
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          2  crucial element is the creation and continuation of

          3  a community advisory board, and I am very personally

          4  committed to making sure that that advisory board is

          5  a constant positive presence in the work of this

          6  facility in all elements of the facilities work,

          7  from the selection of the tenants to the day- to-

          8  day operation, and that the advisory board truly

          9  represent a variety of voices in the community.

         10  That's something I'm going to personally very

         11  involved in, and I just want to thank everyone

         12  regardless on where they started out on this

         13  project.  I want to thank everyone for the

         14  constructive role they played in getting us to this

         15  point, and I do support this project, and thank you

         16  for the opportunity to speak.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         18  Council Member DeBlasio, and I just want to say that

         19  I hope everybody recognizes the hard work that you

         20  put into this project in improving it, and of

         21  course, your commitment which we all know to issues

         22  of affordable housing, not just in your district but

         23  to the City at large, and so, I wanted to thank you

         24  personally for that.

         25                 We have a few people who wish to
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          2  testify on this item today.  So, I'm going to call

          3  two panels of three.

          4                 The first panel will be JoAnne Simon,

          5  Michelle deLauz, and Bo Samajopolous.

          6                 Come on up, and Ms. Simon if you want

          7  to get us started.  You can all go sit up together,

          8  it's fine.  Just hit the button and you can

          9  introduce yourself and begin.

         10                 MS. SIMON:  Thank you, yes, good

         11  afternoon.

         12                 My name is JoAnne Simon, and I'm the

         13  State Committeewoman for the 52nd Assembly District,

         14  and familiar with this area and with these issues.

         15                 I have written previously in support

         16  of this project to both the community board level,

         17  as well as to the City Planning Commission, and I am

         18  happy to provide a copy of those letters if the

         19  Committee would like them.  I didn't do the same

         20  letter at this point.

         21                 I thought I just wanted to speak to a

         22  couple of key issues with regard to this.  One is

         23  that this type of supportive housing is really a

         24  critical resource that is a source of economic

         25  development.  It's built at prevailing wages, and it
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          2  also provides a living wage to those people who are

          3  employed in the development of this project.

          4                 The key components as a person from

          5  the community who has dealt with a lot of these

          6  kinds of projects that I think are going to be very

          7  well addressed by the community advisory committee

          8  are the screening and outreach for residents and the

          9  renting up process.  That renting up process is

         10  extremely key, and I believe that the more community

         11  participation and reaching out to people, and

         12  ensuring that the residents are appropriately place

         13  here is very important for everyone involved, both

         14  the residents as well as the confidence of the

         15  community.

         16                 I also thought I would try and put a

         17  little bit of a human face on some of the people who

         18  are likely to be residents of this supported

         19  housing.  I currently act as a court appointed

         20  guardian for a man who is in his late 50's, he's

         21  deaf, he has cerebral palsy.  I'm sort of the lawyer

         22  sucker who could sign so to speak, and he's worked.

         23  He's worked for 31 years for the federal government

         24  in a laundry.  But even though he can read and

         25  write, and he can sign a check, if a check comes in

                                                            12

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  the mail that says, "$2.00," he doesn't see the,

          3   "and now you will join the vacation club" part of

          4  it, and so he is very easily victimized. It came to

          5  the courts attention after he bought a house that he

          6  didn't even know he bought, and so, but he is a

          7  very, very stable hard working person.  He's very

          8  conservative in his own way. He's exactly the kind

          9  of person that this type of supportive housing would

         10  provide a home for.  As he ages, and has more and

         11  more needs, I have found by moving him to a

         12  supportive housing program in Bedford Stuyvesant but

         13  with a different developer, it has been

         14  extraordinarily helpful for him, and has made a huge

         15  difference in his life because he really didn't have

         16  a safety net, and he needed that.  So, I just wanted

         17  to share that experience with you, and encourage

         18  again, your support for this project.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         21  very much, and before we go to our next witness, I'd

         22  just like to note that we've been joined by Inez

         23  Dickens, council member from Manhattan, also a

         24  member of this Committee.

         25                 So, Michelle please go ahead.
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          2                 MS. DELAUZ:  Thank you Chairman

          3  Garodnick, Council Member DeBlasio, and Councilwoman

          4  Gonzalez, and certainly all of the members of the

          5  Committee.

          6                 I really in particular thank Council

          7  Member DeBlasio and Gonzalez for their support, and

          8  really thoughtfulness throughout the discussion of

          9  this proposed project.

         10                 I think that it really has lead to a

         11  project that not only fulfills the goals of The

         12  Fifth Avenue Committee, and the City's Department of

         13  Housing, Preservation and Development outline, but

         14  also addresses the concerns that the local community

         15  outlined.

         16                 One think I just want to highlight

         17  are some of the modifications that have been made of

         18  the project since it was first proposed.  It kind of

         19  underscores something the Council Member DeBlasio

         20  highlighted.

         21                 This is Amy Gross, architect for the

         22  project.

         23                 The project was going to originally

         24  be 29 units that were set aside for individuals that

         25  were formally homeless living with mental illness.
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          2  As a result of community input, that number has been

          3  modified to 24 individuals living with mental

          4  illness, and five individuals that are formally

          5  homeless living with HIV and AIDS.

          6                 We've also committed, really since

          7  the beginning of the project, and really as a result

          8  of the community's input, to target a number of the

          9  units for woman, for youth aging out of foster care,

         10  and for senior citizens, really highlighting and

         11  underscoring what JoAnne just said about many of our

         12  seniors in the community needing additional

         13  services, and I think every council member has seen

         14  the impact or gentrification and displacement that's

         15  going on in their district throughout the City, and

         16  really if you look at the rates of poverty in New

         17  York City, despite the incredible amount of wealth

         18  that's in the City, poverty rates are going up, gaps

         19  in income and equity are increasing, and believe it

         20  or not, more than 40 percent of Brooklyn's

         21  population qualifies for some form of government

         22  support because their incomes are so low.

         23                 When you look at the affordable

         24  housing that the City of New York is building,

         25  supportive housing is the most affordable of the
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          2  affordable housing that the City builds, and it

          3  builds units specifically for folks that are most in

          4  need, from the local community and folks that are in

          5  our shelter system.

          6                 Community Board 7 is the only

          7  community board  -- this will be the first city-

          8  financed supportive housing project in Community

          9  Board 7, and we're very, very proud to be bringing

         10  this project to Community Board 7.

         11                 FACT (phonetic) alone has over 4,000

         12  people in our housing notification list, and there's

         13  very clearly a need for this project.

         14                 The only thing  --  I do want to

         15  recognize that we have several people here who are

         16  in support of the project, I don't know if folks

         17  want to stand.  We have local neighbors and

         18  residents who are in support.  I want to thank them

         19  all for coming.  Only one or two of them are going

         20  to testify, just so we can save some time, and I do

         21  want to underscore and reiterate our commitment as

         22  we move forward to have the community advisory board

         23  be an integral component to the project.

         24                 We first see that the community

         25  advisory board will not only help us screen the

                                                            16

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  future residents of the project, but also help us

          3  outreach to many, many community residents so we can

          4  have a very large pool from which to choose, and

          5  also to look at and select what the retail component

          6  will be for the ground floor space of the building.

          7                 One thing that wasn't highlighted in

          8  the previous presentation, was that this is going to

          9  be a lead certified green building.  We're very

         10  happy that this is going to be a sustainably

         11  designed building that will actually reduce  -- it's

         12  in keeping with the Mayor's 2030 Plan, and we're

         13  very, very happy to be a part of that.

         14                 I think I'll stop there, and see if

         15  you guys have any questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 Council Member Gonzalez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Thank you

         20  Chair.

         21                 I just want to say to JoAnne Simon

         22  who's an incredible advocate of our communities,

         23  thank you so much for the work you do.  But

         24  especially, and specifically with this particular

         25  project, I want to thank Councilman Bill DeBlasio.
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          2  Although the project is sort of is adjacent to my

          3  community, and will probably be housing a lot of the

          4  wonderful people that are in my district at one time

          5  or another, I just want to say that someone has to

          6  house them, and when we do it responsibly with a

          7  person or an entity such as Fifth Avenue Committee,

          8  because since the 80's you guys have been doing

          9  incredible work.  We're providing case management,

         10  which I was a part of before I was elected, I'm very

         11  proud to say that.

         12                 So, I know that when it's inadequate

         13  housing you make it adequate.  So I'm very proud of

         14  the work that you guys do but I did defer to my

         15  colleague Bill DeBlasio to do his fact finding, and

         16  to do his thinking, and do the right thing, which he

         17  did.  I thank you for that and waited on it.  I did

         18  my own fact finding as well.

         19                 So, I want to congratulate Fifth

         20  Avenue, and I want to say to all those people that

         21  perhaps our opponents and people who don't feel that

         22  this is a good project that change is difficult, and

         23  that we work towards it, and we do responsible work

         24  here in the Council, and we do our homework because

         25  it is about the entire City, and being responsible
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          2  and housing those people that have been part of the

          3  growth and the legacy of our City.

          4                 So, I thank you guys.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          7                 Now we have Mr. Samajopolous.

          8                 MR. SAMAJOPOLOUS:  Hello, hi.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Why don't you

         10  introduce yourself.

         11                 MR. SAMAJOPOLOUS:  My name is Bo

         12  Samajopolous.  I live at 148 16th Street, right down

         13  the block from this project.

         14                 I'd like to thank you for the

         15  opportunity to speak today in support of the ULURP

         16  application for 575 Fifth Avenue.

         17                 I am here on behalf of myself, my

         18  neighbors, and my family to lend our support to HPD

         19  and Fifth Avenue Committees ULURP application.

         20                 I'm a long time resident of 16th

         21  Street, in fact I can see this site from my

         22  daughters bedroom window.

         23                 I can attest to the fact that this

         24  parking lot is indeed underutilized.  Through the

         25  efforts of various community groups, FACT was
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          2  allowed to give presentations to our groups in

          3  regards to 575 Fifth Avenue.  We had many questions

          4  ranging from the scope to the proposed residents.

          5  Many of my neighbors and I feel that FACT and HPD

          6  answered our questions, and our concern. As such, we

          7  support this project.  Subsequent to these meetings,

          8  Mr. DeBlasio has had separate meetings with some

          9  community members who had additional concerns for

         10  this project. It is gratifying to know that most of

         11  those concerns were addressed so that we can now

         12  move forward with this project.

         13                 As a homeowner and a long- time

         14  resident, I welcome the opportunity to have a well-

         15  built contextual building on that corner, unlike

         16  many of the other privately built monstrosities in

         17  the area.  The proposed project takes into account

         18  the community's efforts to protect our natural

         19  sunlight and open space.  It affords the whole

         20  community a garden, and a place to take in some of

         21  that sunlight.  Other buildings have been built with

         22  no consideration for parking, the community, the

         23  workers, or even the new residents.  They are

         24  popping up like string beans with the only

         25  consideration to maximize profits.  I believe that
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          2  more than any of these other buildings, this

          3  proposed project will only add to the value of our

          4  properties and our community at large.

          5                 I look forward to the well- designed

          6  building being proposed, and I welcome the new

          7  neighbors to our community.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         10  very much, and thank you to all of you for your

         11  work, and for being here today.

         12                 I'm going to call our next panel,

         13  which is Matthew Dwyer, Lucy Santiago, and Derrick

         14  Chandler, if she could come join us right up here

         15  that would be great.  Start with Mr. Dwyer.

         16                 MR. DWYER:  Hello members of the

         17  Council, thank you very much.

         18                 My name is Matthew Dwyer, I live

         19  adjacent to the 575 site.  I was initially kind of

         20  concerned, had a lack of information about the

         21  project, and as you can imagine I have three young

         22  children and a wife, and wanted to make sure, make

         23  certain that this was responsible development and

         24  would not affect, obviously, property values for a

         25  small home and my family's safety.
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          2                 I have to say, I was not too familiar

          3  with the public process, public politics, when I

          4  stated out with this project.

          5                 As Mr. DeBlasio said on many

          6  occasions, he looked at me and said, "Is the

          7  democratic process working?"  I have to say it has,

          8  and I'm ultimately very impressed with the efforts

          9  on all sides to acknowledge, I think, serious and

         10  valid concerns for people who live close to this

         11  project.

         12                 That said, I wanted to take a moment

         13  to clarify something.  I think I initially

         14  understood when we mentioned underutilized parking,

         15  I want to make sure that the panel understands that

         16  we have a very small, fragile community with small

         17  retail.  There's mostly small merchants in our

         18  neighborhood, and those merchants, the parking lot

         19  is very important to their well being, and Mr.

         20  DeBlasio has offered the opportunity to work with

         21  the neighborhood to expedite the municipal meters,

         22  which would I guess, subsequently replace three

         23  parking spots per side, per block.

         24                 I have to say that I feel that's a

         25  very important objective for all of us because of
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          2  the fact that regardless, I live adjacent to the

          3  property, that parking lot is very important for

          4  many of those small retailers.  So, I'd like to

          5  represent them today.

          6                 Lastly, I'd just like to say I've

          7  been a main voice of the opposition to the initial

          8  project, and when I say opposition, I don't mean

          9  that I'm against helping people, against affordable

         10  housing, or against helping those in need.  I was in

         11  opposition of possible responsibility of the

         12  implementation of the supportive housing site.  I

         13  feel very compassionate towards all the people that

         14  have a opportunity to have a safe environment, and

         15  have a chance and be able to take part in our

         16  community.  I have to say that I was very happy with

         17  the conversations that have taken place with the

         18  Fifth Avenue Committee recently, and the

         19  clarification that has been made with the screening

         20  process in the different levels of the screening

         21  process, and who the proposed occupancy would be

         22  selected from, and lastly I can't say enough for

         23  what Bill did to listen to a very small group of

         24  people that were obviously very concerned, and

         25  instead of pushing through, he has a personal
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          2  commitment towards implementing affordable housing.

          3                 As I understand, he also recognized

          4  valid concerns from the people of his district, and

          5  he followed through and I believe we have a scenario

          6  that represents the interests of both sides, and

          7  obviously more importantly, helps the people that

          8  are most in need in our community.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         11  Mr. Dwyer, and thank you for your constructiveness

         12  in this process as well.

         13                 Ms. Santiago.

         14                 MS. SANTIAGO:  My name is Lucy

         15  Santiago.  I live on 60th Street, between 3rd and

         16  4th Avenue, very close to 575 Fifth Avenue.

         17                 I am in full support of this project,

         18  and the reason I have is because I experienced 551

         19  Warren Street, where I have my brother who is

         20  mentally ill, and he's been living there since they

         21  first started 551 Warren Street, and I see the

         22  changes and what it has meant to him to have a place

         23  of his own.  He hasn't had to be institutionalized

         24  in the last years since he's been living there.

         25                 I know that people are afraid when
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          2  they hear about mentally ill patients, AIDS, and

          3  homeless, but this is part of our lives.  This is

          4  part of us.  These are our people.  We have to

          5  remember that we have to care for them regardless.

          6  We have to supply for the needy, and right now in

          7  Brooklyn we're having a lot of construction.  A lot

          8  of high- rises are going up, and I see very little

          9  affordable housing for those that need it.

         10                 This is one project which we need

         11  here in Brooklyn, and I'm not only saying this for

         12  Brooklyn, but for the five boroughs.  It shouldn't

         13  be Brooklyn only.  It should be done in other places

         14  because I'm sure the same way we have needy people,

         15  sick people, disabled, we have them in all our

         16  boroughs, and we should be in support of building

         17  more affordable housing for all these needy people,

         18  which could be members of our own families.

         19                 So I am very supportive of the Fifth

         20  Avenue Committee.  I'm very proud of the job they

         21  are doing, and the way that they run 551 Warren

         22  Street, and I hear that this is the way this other

         23  place is going to be for our advantage.  It's not

         24  going to be  --  it's going to favor us all in the

         25  future.
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          2                 So, I thank you and I hope you're in

          3  support also.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

          5  Ms. Santiago, and your points about the need for

          6  affordable housing in New York City are very well

          7  taken and you obviously have a very sympathetic

          8  audience here in this committee and this council,

          9  and we are constantly looking for those ways to be

         10  able to expand those programs which help people who

         11  need, and also to create opportunities for the

         12  creation development of new affordable housing

         13  around the City.

         14                 MS. SANTIAGO:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  But we

         16  appreciate your being here.

         17                 Mr. Chandler.

         18                 MR. CHANDLER:  Good afternoon Council

         19  Member DeBlasio and the rest of the committee.

         20                 My name is Derrick Chandler, and I'm

         21  here this afternoon speaking on behalf of Charles

         22  King the Co-founder and CEO of Housing Works

         23  Incorporated.

         24                 Housing Works is the nations largest

         25  minority controlled HIV/AIDS service provider, and
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          2  there's a critical need for housing for PWA's and

          3  other people with special needs.

          4                 Mr. King would like to express his

          5  strong support for FACT and HPD's 575 Fifth Avenue

          6  Supportive Housing Development proposal.

          7                 This type of development will help

          8  the City and the dual crisis of affordable housing

          9  and homelessness.  It is contextual and sustainable,

         10  and an attractive addition to the community.  He

         11  believes that providing affordable, supportive

         12  housing is not only responsible but critical to

         13  preserving the character of our communities.

         14                 Housing Works offers over 80 units of

         15  supportive housing for Brooklynites living with HIV

         16  and AIDS in both East New York and Bedford

         17  Stuyvesant areas of Brooklyn.

         18                 Our Brooklyn portfolio includes the

         19  transgender traditional housing program in East New

         20  York which provides 20 scattersite apartments, and a

         21  full array of supportive services in East New York.

         22                 The Williams Streeter House, which

         23  offers 12 units of housing in a half- way house

         24  setting for men recovering from alcohol and/or drug

         25  addiction with co-occurring HIV disease and our
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          2  beautiful newly renovated property on Lexington

          3  Avenue in Bedford Stuyvesant that provides 20 units

          4  of transitional housing for woman living with HIV

          5  who have been recently released from correctional

          6  settings.

          7                 We have had the good fortune of being

          8  well received in the communities where housing is

          9  located.  This has been greatly influenced by the

         10  progressive leadership of our elected officials.

         11                 We have also had the experience of

         12  battling NIMBY, and our clients have been crudely

         13  stereotyped and stigmatized.  All too often, this

         14  has occurred when elected officials have not shown

         15  good leadership.

         16                 The Fifth Avenue Committee has a 29

         17  year history of successfully building and managing

         18  affordable housing, including other supportive

         19  housing projects just like the one currently

         20  proposed.

         21                 The facility they are proposing will

         22  only enhance the neighborhood, while retaining a

         23  place within it for low income New Yorkers.

         24                 Please prove HPD and FACTS

         25  application to bring affordable supportive housing
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          2  to 575 Fifth Avenue.

          3                 Sincerely,

          4                 Charles King, CEO and President of

          5  Housing Works Incorporated.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

          7  very much Mr. Chandler, and we appreciate your

          8  sharing that with us.

          9                 Last word from Council Member

         10  DeBlasio.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Thank you

         12  Mr. Chairman. Thank you again for all your help in

         13  this effort.

         14                 I wanted to just respond to a point

         15  that Matt brought up because I don't think when I

         16  was speaking earlier, I think he was coming partway

         17  through the remarks that  --  very much committed on

         18  the parking situation.  I think that was again, I

         19  think Matt and a number of other folks who had

         20  concerns about the project raised very valid, very

         21  important concerns about the actual site, but also

         22  about the larger impact on the community and the

         23  parking point is again, something that we're

         24  grappling with everywhere but getting the

         25  muni-meters in will be a real step forward.  It
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          2  means we'll use the space we have a lot better, and

          3  it will help those merchants.

          4                 I agree with you that helping the

          5  merchants to thrive is part of the long- term

          6  success of the community.  So, I'm very committed to

          7  do that.  I want to say that publicly.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         10  Council Member DeBlasio, and thank you all again for

         11  being here, for all those who joined us today in

         12  support of Land Use Number 377.

         13                 Seeing no other parties seeking to

         14  testify on this item, we will close the hearing on

         15  that Land Use 377, 575 Fifth Avenue, C 070262 HAK,

         16  and open the hearing on our next item, Land Use

         17  Number 406, which is the POKO South Bronx

         18  Condominiums.  This is a project in Bronx Community

         19  Board's 1 and 3, C 070257 HAX. It's in the district

         20  of Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo who is

         21  joining us today.  We're very glad she's here, and

         22  with that I'd like to invite HPD to come back and

         23  introduce this item.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Good

         25  afternoon again, Chairman Garodnick and committee
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          2  members.

          3                 I am Carol Clark from HPD, and I'm

          4  joined by Ted Weinstein who's the director of our

          5  Bronx planning office.

          6                 L.U. 406, known as POKO South Bronx

          7  Condominiums II, consists of the proposed

          8  disposition of five vacant, scattered city- owned

          9  lots, with a lead address of 3120 Park Avenue, for

         10  development under HPD's New Foundations Program.

         11                 The sponsor, POKO Partners LLC will

         12  construct four six- story buildings, which will

         13  provide 32 condominium units for sale to eligible

         14  purchasers.

         15                 Council Member Arroyo is continuing

         16  to review the project, and in fact, tomorrow morning

         17  HPD will accompany her and gardeners to a site visit

         18  to the Bronx.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         20  very much Ms. Clark.

         21                 Council Member Arroyo, did you want

         22  to add anything to this?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  First and

         24  foremost, thank you Mr. Chair for allowing me to say

         25  something, and to thank HPD for its continued effort
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          2  to resolve the issues surrounding this  --  this

          3  land use item I believe has multiple sites contained

          4  in it, and some are in my district and some are in

          5  Council Member Foster's district, but the site

          6  located in my district is a location that housed a

          7  community garden until the development was put

          8  forward.

          9                 For the last two years or so, myself,

         10  the Office of the Assemblywoman, Carmen Arroyo, and

         11  the community folks in particular those that are

         12  fighting to keep what open space in the community,

         13  open space in the community, and they've put a lot

         14  of work into making sure that as HPD develops these

         15  available lots that our gardens are somehow

         16  preserved.  While we may not remain with 22, I

         17  believe is what we had in my district, we had

         18  agreements to find permanent locations for all but

         19  one and the site visit tomorrow is to try to come to

         20  a conclusion on where that last garden will be

         21  located.

         22                 My hope is that we can come to a

         23  consensus on what's being offered.  I'm sorry that

         24  it's taking so long because we have been working for

         25  over two years on trying to resolve this issue, and
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          2  I don't want to hold the land use vote up.

          3                 So, I think that the Committee will

          4  lay it over until Monday that we would have had time

          5  to visit the location with the gardeners, and

          6  hopefully come to a consensus on whether that site

          7  is appropriate.  If it's a site that I have in mind,

          8  I'm optimistic that we will come back and ask for a

          9  favorable vote on Monday, but that remains to be

         10  seen after the site visit tomorrow.

         11                 So, I thank you for your indulging me

         12  for a minute and I will have to go downstairs for a

         13  meeting with the Speaker.               So, I'm sure

         14  that there will be some public testimony probably

         15  along the same lines of my comments.  The open space

         16  we have in the community with all the development

         17  has been reduced year after year as new buildings go

         18  up, and we have to make sure that our community

         19  gardeners  --  those folks that when everyone else

         20  sought to leave the community stayed there and tried

         21  as best as they can to keep our open spaces decent,

         22  and a place where the community can share time and

         23  activities.

         24                 So, I want to thank them for that

         25  work, and hope that on Monday we can come back and
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          2  vote this item out.

          3                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

          5  Council Member Arroyo, and thank you for your

          6  commitment, not only to the development of new

          7  units, but also for protecting those limited public

          8  spaces that we have in the City, those community

          9  gardens are extraordinary and gems in New York.

         10                 I had occasion to visit one just last

         11  weekend in Council Member Mendez's district on 9th

         12  Street and Avenue C and spend a little time, and it

         13  was just a wonderful experience.  So, we applaud you

         14  for your commitment to those.

         15                 We have a member of the public

         16  wishing to testify on this item, Aresh Javadi.

         17                 Mr. Javadi, please, and if I

         18  mispronounced your name, I apologize, but welcome.

         19                 MR. JAVADI:  Hello.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Welcome, go

         21  right ahead.

         22                 MR. JAVADI:  Thank you, it's Aresh

         23  Javadi but thank you very much.

         24                 Yes, I have also one other testimony

         25  from Rosa Alicea, who is a senior citizen.  She had
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          2  come to a couple of meetings, and she's resting

          3  today.  We weren't quite sure if this was going to

          4  be laid over with the testimony or without the

          5  testimony, so she has stayed home.

          6                 So this is her testimony:

          7                 The senior citizens across the street

          8  from Morrisania Senior Citizen Housing Project, it's

          9  a NYCHA housing, have been gardening in this

         10  community for the past 15 years.  We have been moved

         11  twice, the other time also by POKO.

         12                 Council Member Maria del Carmen

         13  Arroyo and HPD have promised the seniors a

         14  relocation site on NYCHA land around the corner on a

         15  currently being built playground.

         16                 We need a written agreement before

         17  our community feels safe that the promises are met,

         18  and we can keep our community garden open for the

         19  seniors as well as the next generations to come.

         20                 The seniors use the community gardens

         21  to feed ourselves, exercise, relax under grapevines,

         22  in short, really stay alive.

         23                 We need the Committee and our council

         24  member to block this proposal until a safe community

         25  green space is created or written down.
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          2                 Thank you, Rosa Alicea and Aguada

          3  Senior Citizen Gardeners.

          4                 This is my little bit of testimony.

          5  I don't know, I guess most of you have seen the last

          6  five or six years how much housing has been built,

          7  and I think some of it is quite, quite needed.

          8                 In the Melrose area, which two-

          9  thirds of it was basically burnt down by greedy

         10  landlords, they have been building, building,

         11  building.  It is one of the areas surrounded by the

         12  highest density of housing projects, and so, we have

         13  quite a huge amount of housing that already exists.

         14  A lot of the new housing, I would have to be honest,

         15  it's $35,000- $45,000 and up for those folks who are

         16  coming in, and it's probably median income for New

         17  York City.  The average income for this neighborhood

         18  is $14,000.  So, it really has left a lot of people

         19  who are gardening there quite feeling like their

         20  spaces are being taken away that they created 30

         21  years ago to help themselves, to feed themselves.

         22  They are like the little Central Park's that are

         23  being created for them, and their cultural values

         24  reflect that.  It's even sort of dearer.  It's a

         25  place where boomba playing music is being played,
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          2  where concroleoz (phonetic) created a new  --

          3  people from Puerto Rico come there to see the House

          4  of Chairma (phonetic).  It's something that needs to

          5  be created more of.

          6                 One thing, 40,000 vacant lots existed

          7  in New York City five or ten years ago, I think the

          8  700 community gardens that are now being left, some

          9  of the are, and some of them are not, those should

         10  just stay.  That's just a priority.  It should be

         11  created more of.  The Mayor is speaking about we

         12  need to have a green space around every corner, why

         13  not  --  this is the cheapest way to keep green

         14  spaces in our neighborhood by just not giving them

         15  away.

         16                 These small houses from POKO, I'm

         17  sure they are great but we have enough housing

         18  there.  We just need to keep some green spaces.

         19  We've got a lot, a lot of eight to ten block housing

         20  coming up, and even 15 floor ones where I live in

         21  the South Bronx.

         22                 So I just again, I think what needs

         23  to be done, is not for me to come here and defend

         24  community gardens, but an aggressive stance and say,

         25   "Hey, we've got one more vacant lot. We've got one
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          2  spaces, let's make those green spaces, and community

          3  green spaces at that."  It's volunteer, you don't

          4  even have to have money for the Parks Department.

          5  The community is taking it on, and when they do that

          6  they want to put their street trees on there too,

          7  and watch out for them so the cars don't back into

          8  them, et cetera.

          9                 So, I think this is a really key

         10  thing, and it's really important that we do that,

         11  and that's it.

         12                 I appreciate me being here.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         14  and thank you for taking the time to come here and

         15  offer testimony, and we appreciate it.

         16                 Seeing no other members of the public

         17  wishing to testify on Land Use Number 406, the POKO

         18  South Bronx Condominiums, C 070257 HAX, we will

         19  close the hearing on that item, and open the hearing

         20  on our next item, Land Use Number 407. I'm going to

         21  ask HPD to come back to the table. This is a 3117-

         22  3127 Surf Avenue, C 070274 HAK, in the district of

         23  Council Member Domenic Recchia.

         24                 Ms. Clark.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  L.U.
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          2  407, known as Surf Gardens consists of the proposed

          3  disposition of two vacant city-owned lots located,

          4  as you said, at 3117- 3127 Surf Gardens for

          5  development under the Section 202 Supportive Housing

          6  Program for the Elderly.

          7                 The proposed sponsor, New York

          8  Foundation for Senior Citizens, Incorporated, will

          9  construct one seven- story building with 76 units of

         10  rental housing for elderly persons of low income,

         11  plus one superintendent unit.

         12                 Council Member Recchia has reviewed

         13  the project and indicated his support.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         15  Ms. Clark.

         16                 Seeing no members of the public

         17  wishing to testify on this item, we will close Land

         18  Use 407, C 070274 HAK, and open the hearing on Land

         19  Use Number 411, which is Fifth on the Park. This is

         20  a project in the district of our own Council Member

         21  Inez Dickens, C 070308 HAM in Manhattan Community

         22  Board 11.

         23                 Ms. Clark.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  I'm

         25  joined today by Wendell Walters, the Assistant
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          2  Commissioner for Housing Production, and we are

          3  having continuing discussions with Council Member

          4  Dickens with regards to this project.

          5                 Wendell, I don't know if you want to

          6  say a word of where we stand, but I believe it's one

          7  in which it will be being laid over.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Oh

          9  yes.  Again, I am Wendell Walters, Assistant

         10  Commissioner for Housing Production of HPD, and as

         11  Carol pointed out, the councilman and HPD have been

         12  in ongoing discussions on the project as

         13  aforementioned within the park.

         14                 We are working with the councilman to

         15  provide additional affordability, and we are well on

         16  our way to accomplishing that.  We certainly have to

         17  forward some information to her in the next couple

         18  of days, but I think that we will be able to come to

         19  some resolution.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  We appreciate

         21  your working with Council Member Dickens, but before

         22  we go to Council Member Dickens, if you could

         23  actually just introduce the item itself as to what

         24  we're talking about here.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:
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          2  Absolutely.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  The

          5  application would facilitate two mixed-use buildings

          6  known as Fifth on the Park with approximately 41

          7  residential units to be developed under HPD's

          8  Cornerstone Program.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, so two

         10  mixed use buildings, 41 residential units, and

         11  what's there today?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         13  Currently, there are two vacant lots.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  There are two

         15  vacant lots you said?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Yes

         17  sir.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 Council Member Dickens.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you

         22  Chair.

         23                 I respectfully request that the chair

         24  hold the vote over until June 25th in order to allow

         25  the developer and I sufficient time to come to an
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          2  understanding that supports the East Harlem

          3  communities in order to provide affordable housing

          4  that is badly needed in a community that is being

          5  saturated with high- end development, not

          6  encouraging sufficient affordable units.

          7                 While I welcome home ownership

          8  because without ownership a community is lost, I

          9  must ask for affordability to be a part of that

         10  ownership.

         11                 When a police officer with a starting

         12  salary of $25,000, or our teachers whom we ask to

         13  reside within the city limits cannot afford to live

         14  in our great city, I must continue to fight for home

         15  ownership that must be inclusive of affordability.

         16                 I applaud HPD's Commissioners,

         17  Wendell Walters and Carol Clark, my land use staff,

         18  and particularly the Director, Gail Benjamin,

         19  Automus (phonetic) Construction for their

         20  willingness to revise and modify the breakdown of

         21  affordable units, and my staff member Matt Bitts

         22  (phonetic) for the diligent, difficult work to

         23  assist in ensuring the survival of this development,

         24  Fifth on the Park, 41 units of development that we

         25  all want and need for our communities, but that is
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          2  inclusive of a mix of affordable home ownership that

          3  supports the City Council's commitment of protecting

          4  our communities, providing affordable home ownership

          5  and affordable rental housing, while still

          6  supporting New York City's infrastructure.

          7                 I believe that we are very close to

          8  coming to a meeting of the minds.

          9                 Thank you Chair Garodnick, and my

         10  colleagues.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  You're very

         12  welcome, and I am very happy to lay that item over

         13  until Monday at 9:45, and seeing no other members of

         14  the public wishing to testify in the subject of Land

         15  Use Number 411, Fifth on the Park, C 070308 HAM, we

         16  will close the hearing on that item.

         17                 We will open the hearing very briefly

         18  on Preconsidered Land Use 3rd Party Transfer In-Rem

         19  49, which is a technical correction from projects

         20  previously approved in the district of Council

         21  Member Erik Martin Dilan.

         22                 Ms. Clark.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes,

         24  L.U. Pre, this consists of the proposed transfer of

         25  767 Blake Avenue, part of the Brooklyn In Rem Action
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          2  Number 49, under HPD's 3rd Party Transfer Program.

          3                 The Commissioner of Finance included

          4  this parcel in the final judgement of foreclosure,

          5  known as In- Rem Action Number 49.  The judgment

          6  authorized the Commissioner of Finance to execute

          7  and deliver the deed to transferee's selected by the

          8  commissioner of HPD.  HPD is proposing neighborhood

          9  restore HDFC as the transferee.

         10                 Council Member Dilan has reviewed

         11  this project, and indicated his support.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

         13  you very much.

         14                 We will close the hearing on

         15  Preconsidered Land Use 3rd Party Transfer In-Rem 49,

         16  and we will open the hearing on our last item on

         17  today's calendar.

         18                 Before we do, I want to note that we

         19  are joined by Council Member Tish James of Brooklyn.

         20    We are very glad to have you here, and we happen

         21  to be opening the hearing on an item in her

         22  district.  So, we're particularly glad you are here.

         23                 Land Use Number 469 at 287 Gold

         24  Street.  This is in Brooklyn Community Board 2, C

         25  070286 PPK, and I'd like to invite Hardy Adasko up,
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          2  Ken Fisher to introduce this item.

          3                 Whenever you are ready, please just

          4  introduce yourselves and go right ahead.

          5                 MR. ADASKO:  Good afternoon, my name

          6  is Hardy Adasko.  I am Senior Vice President for

          7  Planning at the New York City Economic Development

          8  Corporation.

          9                 We have before you an application for

         10  the disposition of air rights, and what's called a

         11  negative easement, a promise not to build in a

         12  certain space, to transfer that 75,000 square feet

         13  of floor area to the adjacent property from the 84th

         14  Precinct Police Station and Fire House, and provide

         15  a light and air easement immediately adjacent to the

         16  private property.

         17                 The developers, he will describe in

         18  greater detail has an as- of- right project of about

         19  35 stories which includes off- side affordable

         20  housing under the City's existing programs. As part

         21  of the transfer, 20 percent will be devoted to

         22  on-site affordable housing in condominium format in

         23  the building. The Community Board Number 2 has

         24  approved it.  The borough president has approved it.

         25    The City Planning Commission has approved it, and

                                                            45

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  we urge your support.  It's a way to realize some

          3  value from air rights that are otherwise unused, and

          4  provide additional affordable housing beyond the as-

          5  of- right project, and that's why we're here.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          8                 Mr. Fisher did you have anything to

          9  add?

         10                 MR. FISHER:  Thank you very much, Mr.

         11  Chairman and members of the council.

         12                 Kenneth Fisher representing the

         13  developer.

         14                 We asked the Sergeant- At- Arms to

         15  pass out to you just a couple of illustrations.  One

         16  is a site map for those of you who are not familiar

         17  with the area.  If you've come over the Manhattan

         18  Bridge and basically make a left of Tillary Street

         19  heading towards the Brooklyn- Queens Expressway, you

         20  would go past the fire house and police station,

         21  behind which is the proposed site, and that's

         22  indicated on the map.

         23                 The design of the building mirrors a

         24  site that's being developed by the same developer

         25  and partnership team, basically diagonally across
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          2  the street, and we work with City Planning to modify

          3  the design, particularly the area directly in front

          4  of the building.

          5                 We think it's a welcome addition to

          6  Downtown Brooklyn, and completely within the zoning

          7  that this Council approved just a couple of years

          8  ago.  In fact recent newspaper stories about the

          9  market in Downtown Brooklyn, pointed out that what a

         10  surprise it was that there was actually demand for

         11  housing on the north side of Flatbush Avenue, and

         12  that is consistent with the zoning that this Council

         13  adopted and supported.

         14                 So basically, the transaction would

         15  allow us to make the building slightly fatter.

         16  That's the third illustration, and add some floor

         17  area to the top of the building.             From

         18  our point of view, the land use benefits of the

         19  project outweigh the negatives.  The addition is

         20  basically benign from an environmental point of

         21  view.  That's why it had the support from the

         22  community board and the borough president.         The

         23  action that you're being asked to vote on is the

         24  disposition of a negative easement restricting the

         25  City's ability to use 75,000 square feet of air
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          2  rights.

          3                 It leaves ample air rights, more than

          4  a quarter of a million square feet, for development,

          5  should the City decide to do that at some point in

          6  the future.  But also, requires that the two

          7  building not be within 60 feet above the second

          8  floor from a light and air point of view, of course

          9  it makes perfect sense.

         10                 While it's not technically part of

         11  the land use action, there is a business transaction

         12  that's associated with this.  We are paying fair

         13  market value for the air rights based on an

         14  appraisal, and if you can do the arithmetic you'll

         15  realize that it's a rather substantial amount of

         16  money that the City would realize for selling air

         17  that it otherwise wouldn't be using.

         18                 So, we hope that you'll approve the

         19  application as did the previous branches of

         20  government.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you for

         22  that, and in a moment I'll give Council Member James

         23  a chance to speak or ask any questions she wishes.

         24                 Let me just make sure that we're all

         25  clear on what is proposed.  Today the city- owned
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          2  property is a police department, a police

          3  station/fire station, is that correct?

          4                 MR. ADASKO:  Yes, that is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  What you're

          6  seeking is the disposition of a negative easement

          7  for 75,000 square feet, is that right?

          8                 MR. ADASKO:  That's correct.  Plus a

          9  no build zone of 60 feet.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I'm sorry,

         11  say that one more time.

         12                 MR. ADASKO:  Plus the light and air

         13  easement of 60 feet separating the buildings.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Otherwise you

         15  have an as of- right development of approximately a

         16  35- story building today under existing zoning?

         17                 MR. FISHER:  Yes, and we intend to

         18  break ground on it shortly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Is there any

         20  affordable housing component in the building that

         21  you're planning to build today without this?

         22                 MR. ADASKO:  The as- of- right

         23  building was able to access the inclusionary housing

         24  program that is part of the zoning resolution, and

         25  available under the Downtown Brooklyn re zoning.
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          2                 What the developer did was invest in

          3  an off- site affordable housing project that is

          4  being done by a different developer.  We're merely

          5  an investor in it, and pursuant to their HPD

          6  approved plan, that building is in construction now

          7  within Community Board 2.

          8                 We bought into that building in order

          9  to access the inclusionary program for both towers,

         10  specifically with respect to this tower.  The net

         11  affect of that is that our portion of the off- site

         12  building is approximately nine units, and by virtue

         13  of that we were able to increase the density on this

         14  building from an R- 10 equivalent to an R- 12

         15  equivalent.  That transaction has closed, that

         16  building is in construction.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         18  and the additional rights that you would acquire

         19  from the City would allow you to build how many

         20  additional units total?

         21                 MR. ADASKO:  The addition is more

         22  than 75 units, of which approximately 20 will be

         23  sold below market.

         24                 The way we negotiated the structure

         25  was that we would take 20 percent of the 75,000
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          2  square feet, or 15,000 square feet, and make that

          3  available for the affordable units.

          4                 The exact room count for that 75,000

          5  square foot component hasn't been developed yet.  So

          6  if you figure that the typical apartment is going to

          7  be 900 square feet, that's how the arithmetic works

          8  out.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  In terms of

         10  the  --  where you would add the bulk on the

         11  building, it looks like you have some at the base

         12  and then you're adding five stories at the top, is

         13  that correct?

         14                 MR. ADASKO:  Correct, and slightly

         15  fattening the building as well.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  If approved,

         17  okay.

         18                 I'm going to give Council Member

         19  James an opportunity.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         21                 A question, those 20 that are below

         22  market, the room count, how many bedrooms?

         23                 MR. ADASKO:  We haven't finally

         24  established that yet.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And what is
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          2  the purchase price?

          3                 MR. ADASKO:  We're anticipating that

          4  the typical unit with a maximum for the largest unit

          5  would be about $205,000, and we think the typical

          6  unit would be about $160,000, which is less than

          7  half of what some of the market rates units would go

          8  for.

          9                 We've pegged it at 110 percent of

         10  area median income.  So, it's basically affordable

         11  to working and middle class families.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  What does that

         13  translate into in terms of numbers?

         14                 MR. ADASKO:  We're anticipating that

         15  the typical purchaser would be a family that was

         16  making approximately $55,000 or $60,000, for whom

         17  home ownership would otherwise in that neighborhood

         18  would be completely out of reach.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  The actual

         20  purchase price would be?

         21                 MR. ADASKO:  The actual purchase

         22  price, I believe that the typical unit is going to

         23  go for about $165,000 or $175,000.  The largest unit

         24  would go for $205,000.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  The apartments
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          2  that are being sold on the market, what is a typical

          3  purchase price for those?

          4                 MR. ADASKO:  We're anticipating,

          5  based on our sales of the companion building, which

          6  is nearly complete, that the blended average in the

          7  building will be approximately $750.00.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  The 20 below

          9  market apartments, will they be segregated, or will

         10  they be all over the building?  Dispersed throughout

         11  the building?

         12                 MR. ADASKO:  They're likely to be

         13  dispersed over the building, but candidly, they're

         14  not likely to be the most  -- the highest value

         15  apartments.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So in all

         17  likelihood, they'll be on the lower floor?  Would

         18  that be fair to say?

         19                 MR. ADASKO:  I would think so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Would any of

         21  those units have two bedrooms or three bedrooms?

         22                 MR. ADASKO:  Some of them will have

         23  two bedrooms, a few, but probably no three bedrooms.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Your companion

         25  building, I notice that you're marketing in the New
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          2  York Times, the New Yorker Magazine.  You're not

          3  marketing it in any local magazines at all.  I've

          4  seen them all in the New York Times and the New

          5  Yorker magazines.

          6                 Are you marketing in any local

          7  magazines or newspapers, periodicals, or "ethnic

          8  media?"

          9                 MR. ADASKO:  I'm not really sure, but

         10  I know that the developer advertises extensively in

         11  a lot of publications. So, I just don't know.  The

         12  reality is that I think that the most of marketing

         13  is actually done by the brokers and the Internet.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Is there an

         15  exclusive broker by the name of Corcoran being used?

         16                 MR. ADASKO:  I don't know that a

         17  broker has been selected for this building.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Have you hired

         19  any local brokers?

         20                 MR. ADASKO:  I don't think we've

         21  hired any brokers.  To the best of my knowledge, we

         22  haven't selected the brokers for this building.

         23                 However, along those lines I can tell

         24  you that we've had extensive conversations with the

         25  Downtown Brooklyn Partnership about working with

                                                            54

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  local contractors and local hires, to the extent

          3  that we can, and this came up at the community

          4  board.  Again, it's not necessarily relevant to the

          5  land use decision, but we are  --  the building

          6  that's being built now is being built as a union

          7  job, and I believe that that's the case with the new

          8  building as well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  On your

         10  companion building, how many minority contractors

         11  have you employed?

         12                 MR. ADASKO:  I don't know.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay, as far

         14  as you know, how many minority employees are hired

         15  on that job?  Do you know?

         16                 MR. ADASKO:  On the job I don't know.

         17

         18                 I only know that my client has a

         19  completely diverse workforce, and does projects in

         20  all five boroughs, and has sold an awful lot of

         21  homes in neighborhoods where other developers have

         22  not been active.

         23                 Based on my own personal inspection

         24  of going to his offices, he has a completely diverse

         25  workforce.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  On the

          3  inclusionary housing, the off- site community- based

          4  organization that you selected, that was not

          5  selected with my input, correct?

          6                 MR. ADASKO:  Well, actually it wasn't

          7  selected by us council member.

          8                 As I mentioned previously, we

          9  invested in a third parties project.  We have

         10  nothing to do with picking the site or the operator

         11  of that housing, and we were merely investors in the

         12  deal to access the zoning.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Who selected

         14  that operator?

         15                 MR. ADASKO:  The developer of that

         16  project.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay, and the

         18  developer as far as you know  --  well, withdrawn.

         19                 MR. ADASKO:  But the operator, in

         20  case anybody is interested, the operator of that

         21  project, I understand, is the Metropolitan Council

         22  on Jewish Poverty.

         23                 I believe based on my conversations

         24  with their executive director, it's an organization

         25  with which you've worked in the past.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes, and it's

          3  a fine organization.

          4                 It's just that I knew nothing about

          5  it, and had no involvement in the selection of the

          6  operator.

          7                 MR. ADASKO:  Well I believe, that

          8  under the Inclusionary Housing Program there's

          9  notification of those types of transactions to the

         10  community board, and they're approved by HPD.  But

         11  we had nothing to do with it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I understand

         13  that, the notification came after the fact.

         14                 My point is Mr. Chairman, I oppose

         15  this application.

         16                 I just came from a meeting with a

         17  minister three blocks from where these two luxury

         18  buildings are being developed, who had talked

         19  extensively about the displacement of poor people

         20  and people of color in Downtown Brooklyn, and he

         21  talked extensively about how Downtown Brooklyn is

         22  becoming very homogenous.

         23                 I then left the meeting with him

         24  after a very long, extensive, heart- wrenching

         25  conversation with him, and then went over to a rally
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          2  two blocks away on Duffield Place where they want to

          3  demolish some homes to build another luxury

          4  building.

          5                 At some point in time, we've got to

          6  put a stop to it.  At some point in time, we've got

          7  to take a stand.

          8                 I recognize that this is primarily an

          9  as- of- right project, and I recognize that the land

         10  use application has most to do with a negative

         11  easement, and a corollary issue relates to this

         12  settling of air rights.

         13                 It's my position that if, in fact, we

         14  sell the air rights that the air rights should not

         15  go into the general fund, that it should be

         16  dedicated to affordable housing, either on- site or

         17  in a neighborhood or in a development project nearby

         18  for residents who actually live in the community who

         19  are being displaced in overwhelming numbers, which

         20  is again, affecting the geo-political and

         21  socio-economic realities of Downtown Brooklyn. So

         22  Mr. Chair, I would ask that we adjourn or delay the

         23  vote until Monday, until we continue to have

         24  discussions with the Administration with respect to

         25  this issue, which is unfortunately at a crisis in
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          2  Downtown Brooklyn, and again, since this is

          3  Juneteenth, Juneteenth is celebrated throughout

          4  urban centers.  Juneteenth is a celebration based on

          5  the fact that slaves did not get word that they were

          6  liberated until June 19th of the same year, and I

          7  just hope that two- and- a- half years later after

          8  the fact that they were liberated, and I would hope

          9  that news gets over to the Administration that they

         10  have to do more in Downtown Brooklyn to preserve the

         11  diversity of Downtown Brooklyn, which unfortunately

         12  is quickly diminishing.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         15  Council Member James, and I'd be happy to honor that

         16  request that we lay this item over until Monday at

         17  9:45.

         18                 But before we do that, we do have one

         19  other individual seeking to testify on this matter,

         20  which is Roger Fortune from the Downtown Brooklyn

         21  Partnership.

         22                 Mr. Fortune.

         23                 MR. ADASKO:  Before he testifies Mr.

         24  Chairman, can I just put one footnote to what the

         25  council member said?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Sure.

          3                 MR. ADASKO:  I'm certainly

          4  sympathetic to the dynamic changes that are going on

          5  in Downtown Brooklyn, and I'm not here to speak on

          6  behalf of the City, but I did want to make two

          7  observations to you for the record.

          8                 One is that to my understanding the

          9  City is funding a number of projects in the Downtown

         10  Brooklyn area within the council members district,

         11  specifically for the purpose of addressing some of

         12  the affordable housing issues that she is speaking

         13  of.  We are completely sympathetic to that, but

         14  based on our environmental assessment we don't think

         15  that the incremental increase here is the cause of

         16  the displacement, and we're committed to building 20

         17  affordable units.  If the application is denied,

         18  there will be no affordable units on- site.

         19                 In addition to that, we're going to

         20  be providing a substantial amount of money for the

         21  benefit of all of the taxpayers for all of the needs

         22  that you all want.

         23                 It is very easy now to discount the

         24  value of that in a time when we're running record

         25  surpluses.  Having lived through budget cycles where
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          2  that was not the case, I certainly urge you to take

          3  the benefits that this project offers into account.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Right, thank

          6  you very much.

          7                 Mr. Fortune, welcome.

          8                 MR. FORTUNE:  Roger Fortune from the

          9  Downtown Brooklyn Partnership.

         10                 The Downtown Brooklyn Partnership is

         11  a non- profit organization created to foster the

         12  continual growth of the City's third largest

         13  business district.  It's core mission is to enhance

         14  the environment for investment in Downtown Brooklyn,

         15  and bolster the district's position as a vibrant

         16  business center, residential community, retail

         17  destination and world- class cultural hub.

         18                 The proposed 313 Gold Street is a 40-

         19  story, 296 unit residential building with

         20  underground parking, and ground floor retail.

         21                 The project represents nearly $175

         22  million of private investment by Galeb (phonetic)

         23  Properties Incorporated. The developers

         24  participating in the City's Inclusionary Housing

         25  Program by developing nine, low- income off- site
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          2  affordable rental housing units at 89 and 91 Carlton

          3  Avenue in nearby Fort Greene. The proposed

          4  development would also include approximately 20

          5  affordable condominium units on-site for purchases

          6  with household incomes below 110 percent of area

          7  median income in an otherwise market rate

          8  condominium tower.  No public subsidy or financial

          9  assistance is being sought for these affordable

         10  condominiums, with the exception of a 421- A tax

         11  exemption benefits, which are available to the

         12  project as- of right.

         13                 The developer will finance the

         14  construction of the affordable condominiums by

         15  cross- subsidizing them with revenue from the sale

         16  of market rate condominiums.

         17                 In addition, nearly 300 union

         18  construction jobs will be created by this project,

         19  offering economic opportunity to Brooklyn's

         20  residents as well as additional tax revenue to the

         21  City.

         22                 The developers have agreed to work to

         23  ensure that woman, minority and local residents and

         24  business enterprises meaningfully participate in

         25  this project.
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          2                 The Downtown Brooklyn Partnership

          3  enthusiastically supports the development of 313

          4  Gold Street.  We believe that it serves the needs of

          5  Downtown Brooklyn, and realizes the goals of the

          6  City's Downtown Brooklyn Rezoning Plan approved in

          7  2004, which encourages the growth of a dynamic,

          8  mixed use community and the core of the Downtown

          9  Brooklyn area.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you Mr.

         12  Fortune.

         13                 Council Member James.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Mr. Fortune,

         15  thank you and I look forward to working with you on

         16  the development of Downtown Brooklyn, all of the

         17  projects that you've mentioned, and we've had

         18  several discussions with respect to all this

         19  development to ensure affordability for the

         20  residents that I represent.

         21                 My question to you is the first

         22  building that is going up, how many units are we

         23  talking about?  The one on Johnson?

         24                 MR. FORTUNE:  You mean that building

         25  that's currently under construction?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes, it's

          3  almost completed.

          4                 MR. FORTUNE:  I don't know the exact

          5  number.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  It's about 200

          7  would it be fair to say?

          8                 MR. FORTUNE:  Two hundred sounds

          9  about right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Two hundred

         11  units, and the second building that's under

         12  consideration now is how many units in total?  The

         13  market--

         14                 MR. FORTUNE:  If this is approved--

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Just the

         16  market.

         17                 MR. FORTUNE:  If this was approved,

         18  it would be 296 total units.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Total, so

         20  basically we're talking about 250 market, and

         21  another 200 in the companion building.

         22                 So, that's about 400 units and we're

         23  only setting aside 20?

         24                 MR. FORTUNE:  Plus the nine off-

         25  site.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Twenty, plus

          3  nine, 29 to 400, and I'm supposed to be happy?

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MR. FORTUNE:  Oh, I'm sorry there's

          6  15.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Fortune.

          9                 With that, we will close the hearing

         10  on Land Use Number 469, and that is the last item

         11  that we're going to hear today.

         12                 So just to summarize, we are going to

         13  voting today after laying over some of the items

         14  we've heard today.  We're going to be voting on Land

         15  Use Number 377, that's the 575 Fifth Avenue project

         16  in Council Member DeBlasio's district.

         17                 We're voting on Land Use Number 407,

         18  that's 3117 3127 Surf Avenue in Council Member

         19  Recchia's district, and we're voting on

         20  Preconsidered Land Use 3rd Party Transfer In- Rem 49

         21  in Council Member Dilan's district.

         22                 We are going to lay over all of the

         23  rest of the items on today's calendar at the request

         24  of the individual members in whose properties the

         25  district sits.
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          2                 The chair recommends an aye vote, and

          3  I'm going to ask the counsel to call the roll.

          4                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chair

          5  Garodnick.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Aye.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

          8  Member Baez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Aye.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         11  Member Dickens.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Aye.

         13                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         14  Member Ignizio.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Aye.

         16                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  The vote

         17  stands at four in the affirmative, none in the

         18  negative, and no abstentions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  This meeting

         20  is going to be recessed.

         21                 Before we do that, I also want to

         22  recognize one more intern of my office, who has come

         23  to join us, Grace Lindsay (phonetic), who's also in

         24  the third row over on the right.  We're glad she's

         25  here.
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          2                 We will recess this hearing until

          3  Monday the 25th of June at 9:45.

          4                 Thanks everybody.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 2:25 p.m.)
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